POLICE BOARD CITY OF CHICAGO PUBLIC MEETING

Thursday, October 20, 2022 7:30 p.m. (VIA VIDEO and AUDIO CONFERENCE)

#### **APPEARANCES:**

MEMBERS OF THE POLICE BOARD: GHIAN FOREMAN, President PAULA WOLFF, Vice President STEVEN BLOCK MAREILÉ CUSACK NANNETTE DOORLEY MICHAEL EADDY JORGE MONTES

#### ALSO PRESENT:

DAVID BROWN, Superintendent of Police; ERIC CARTER, First Deputy Superintendent of Police; ANDREA KERSTEN, Chief Administrator of the Civilian Office of Police Accountability; DEBORAH WITZBURG, Inspector General of the City of Chicago;

YOLANDA TALLEY: Chief of the Chicago Police
Department's Bureau of Internal Affairs;
BRIAN McDERMOTT, Chief of Chicago Police
Department's Bureau of Patrol;
BRENDAN DEENIHAN, Chief of the Chicago Police
Department's Bureau of Detectives;
TINA SKAHILL, Executive Director of the Chicago
Police Department's Office of Constitutional
Policing and Reform;
DANA O'MALLEY, General Counsel to the
Superintendent;
ELENA GOTTREICH, Deputy Mayor for Public Safety;
MAX CAPRONI, Executive Director of the Police Board.

MEMBERS OF THE CHICAGO POLICE DEPARTMENT COMMAND STAFF;
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC.

PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Good evening, everyone. I hope this evening finds everyone well. I think we will get started. My name is Ghian Foreman, president of the Chicago Police Board, and I'm calling the Board's October 20th public meeting to order.

To protect the public's health in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, this meeting is taking place remotely. Pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act, I have determined that holding this meeting in person is not practical, nor prudent.

The City of Chicago remains subject to the governor's disaster proclamation due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the disease continues to be a threat, especially to the unvaccinated and people with certain health conditions. We are therefore having the meeting remotely this month.

This meeting is open to the public via video and audio conference and being carried live by CAN-TV. Members of the public are on mute in order to reduce background noise and disruptions. We have a court reporter making a transcript of the meeting as well.

1	In addition to Police Board members,
2	we have several City officials here with us this
3	evening. I will begin by taking attendance so it is
4	clear who is participating in this meeting. Please
5	say "here" after I read your name.
6	Police Board Vice President Paula
7	Wolff.
8	VICE PRESIDENT WOLFF: Here.
9	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Board Member Steven Block.
10	BOARD MEMBER BLOCK: Here.
11	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Board Member Mareilé
12	Cusack.
13	BOARD MEMBER CUSACK: Here.
14	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Board Member Nanette
15	Doorley.
16	BOARD MEMBER DOORLEY: Here.
17	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Board Member Michael Eaddy.
18	BOARD MEMBER EADDY: Here.
19	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Board Member Jorge Montes.
20	BOARD MEMBER MONTES: Here.
21	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Superintendent of Police
22	David Brown.
23	SUPERINTENDENT BROWN: Here.
24	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Chief Administrator of the

1	Civilian Office of Police Accountability, Andrea
2	Kersten.
3	CHIEF KERSTEN: Here.
4	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Inspector General of the
5	City of Chicago, Deborah Witzburg.
6	MS. WITZBURG: Here.
7	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Chief of the Chicago Police
8	Department Bureau of Internal Affairs Yolanda
9	Talley.
10	CHIEF TALLEY: Here.
11	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Chief of the Bureau of
12	Patrol Brian McDermott.
13	CHIEF McDERMOTT: Here.
14	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Chief of the Bureau of
15	Detectives Brendan Deenihan.
16	CHIEF DEENIHAN: Here.
17	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Chief of the Office of
18	Constitutional Policing and Reform, Angel Novalez.
19	Executive Director of CPD's Office of
20	Constitutional Policing and Reform Tina Skahill.
21	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SKAHILL: Here, sir.
22	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: General Counsel to the
23	Superintendent, Dana O'Malley.
24	GENERAL COUNSEL O'MALLEY: Here.

1	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Deputy Mayor for a
2	little feedback there. Deputy Mayor for Public
3	Safety Elena Gottreich.
4	DEPUTY MAYOR GOTTREICH: Here.
5	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Executive Director of the
6	Police Board Max Caproni.
7	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CAPRONI: Here.
8	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Thank you.
9	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CAPRONI: Mr. President, I'm
10	sorry. I forgot to include First Deputy
11	Superintendent Eric Carter on your list. So that's
12	my oversight. But I recognize he is here today.
13	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Thank you. First Deputy.
14	FIRST DEPUTY CARTER: Here. Good evening.
15	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Good evening. We will now
16	proceed to the items on the meeting agenda. We'll
17	have time at the end of the agenda for public
18	comments. Once again, members of the public are
19	currently on mute in order to reduce background
20	noise and disruptions. When we get to the public
21	comment portion of the meeting, we will unmute each
22	speaker.
23	There are currently vacancies on the
24	Chicago Police Board, and as you may know, the

City's new Community Commission for Public Safety and Accountability is responsible for nominating candidates to the Mayor. We are pleased to have with us this evening Commissioner Yvette Loizon who will speak about the open application process the Commission is using to select its nominees.

Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER LOIZON: Thank you, President Foreman. And thanks to all of you and your Board

Foreman. And thanks to all of you and your Board members, not only for having me here tonight, but also your great service to the City of Chicago.

I'm here tonight to advise everyone about the procedure that we have set up to ensure that members of the public can apply for the open positions on the Police Board.

Historically, Police Board members
have been chosen directly by the Mayor, but now that
the Community Commission for Public Safety and
Accountability is responsible for assisting the
Mayor in filling those vacancies, we have recognized
the importance of ensuring that all Chicagoans who
are qualified have an opportunity to participate,
and so we have created an application process. Our
application can be found on our website. And I'm

going to read that off so I don't say it wrong. 1 It's on the Community Commission for Public Safety 2 and Accountability website which you can find on 3 www.Chicago.gov. In the government drop-down menu, 4 if you click on Community Commission for Public 5 Safety and Accountability, there is a Learn More 6 link under a heading that says Interested in Serving on the Police Board. The application is there. 8 it has directions for whom you would electronically 9 10 send it to via e-mail once it is filled out. 11 The Commission posted this Police 12 Board application on October 7th and we provided 30 days for individuals to fill out the application. 13 14 So the applications are due by November 7th. 15 is our deadline. 16 Once we receive the applications, 17 there will be an interview process and ultimately 18 members of the Commission will make recommendation 19 to the Mayor and then the Mayor will ultimately 20 choose members from the list of recommendations that 21 we have sent to her. 22 It is our great hope that qualified 23 Chicagoans will recognize the importance of the 2.4 Police Board and step up to serve. And, once again,

thanks to all of you for letting me be here tonight to share that information.

2.4

PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Thank you. I wanted to also make a pitch. So I've served on the Chicago Police Board now for 12 years, a little bit over 12 years. And it is a very critical role. You know, a lot of times we all have a part to play in this police accountability system. And it's something that it's important to all of us. And I think the new Commission is a great example where the community came together to say that they wanted a larger voice in the police accountability system.

The Police Board is one of those opportunities where you get an opportunity to really understand some of the -- the most important of the issues when it comes to police accountability and that's dealing with where police officers have been accused of breaking a rule and anything from one year -- where the suggestion is one-year suspension all the way up to termination.

These are hard issues. Right? I think that it takes a diverse set of members to talk through these issues and really think through all of the issues in a very careful and thoughtful way.

And it requires -- this is an opportunity where each of us, every Chicagoan now has the opportunity to be a part of the process. You kind of get a chance to really see for themselves and be a part of this making the system better.

So strongly would encourage you.

It's not the job where somebody's patting you on the back every month and saying, Eww, man, you guys made a great decision. But it is a really important role. I think it's given me, personally, an opportunity to understand the challenging work that our police have every day and at the same time get an understanding of some of the challenges that some of the community members are faced with, and some of the things we deal with, even in this monthly call, how we get a chance to hear from community members.

And it's one opportunity that we have to be a part -- direct part of improving our system.

So I will strongly encourage people to apply. If you have questions, you certainly can reach out to us at the Police Board. We will be happy to speak with you about our experience and definitely strongly encourage Chicagoans to apply.

So, again, thank you so much,

Commission, and we will be available for anyone who 1 2 has additional questions. COMMISSIONER LOIZON: 3 Thank you. PRESIDENT FOREMAN: We are also pleased this 4 5 evening to have with us Elena Gottreich, the City's Deputy Mayor for Public Safety. Deputy Mayor 6 Gottreich is here to speak for public safety 7 priorities and initiatives. Deputy. 8 9 DEPUTY MAYOR GOTTREICH: Good evening. Thank you, President Foreman. Good evening, everyone. 10 the Deputy Mayor for Public Safety, my office is in 11 12 charge of overseeing the Police Department, the Fire Department, OEMC, as well as all of our 13 accountability and administrative functions, which 14 15 includes the public safety administration, the new 16 Community Commission for Public Safety and 17 Accountability, COPA, as well as the Police Board. 18 Mayor Lightfoot has stressed that public safety is not exclusive to law enforcement 19 20 and to the police. Public safety exists in an 21 ecosystem. That means that we need to build up and 22 build out all of our communities equitably and 23 sustainably in order for public safety to be a 24 lasting, meaningful thing in Chicago.

Accountability is central to this 1 2 ecosystem because, as we know, Chicagoans do not and will not feel safe if they do not have trust in the 3 system and trust in their police officers. 4 I have full faith in the Police 5 Board, and COPA, and CCPSA, and the Police 6 7 Department, and I am encouraged by all of the collaboration and transparency and work that all of 8 these bodies have done to push those messages out to 9 10 the community. 11 I apologize for sitting in the dark 12 in my car. I'm sitting outside of a fundraiser for 13 Chicago Survivors, which I wanted to mention because it calls into question exactly why we do what we do. 14 15 We fail if our Chicagoans are not kept safe and if 16 they're faced with the trauma and the debilitative 17 effects that crime has on our community. 18 So I want to thank the Police 19 Department. I want to thank the Police Board. 20 want to thank COPA, the IG, CCPSA, everybody that 21 President Foreman introduced for doing your part to 22 make public safety a priority in Chicago. Thank 23 you. Thank you, Deputy. 24 PRESIDENT FOREMAN:

1	Board, is there a motion to approve
2	the minutes of the Board's August 18th regular
3	public excuse me. Let me look at this date.
4	BOARD MEMBER EADDY: September.
5	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Is there a motion to
6	approve the Board's September 15th regular public
7	meeting?
8	VICE PRESIDENT WOLFF: I appear to be frozen.
9	Can you hear me?
10	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Yes.
11	VICE PRESIDENT WOLFF: Yes. Paula Wolff. I'd
12	like to make that motion.
13	BOARD MEMBER EADDY: Yes, Michael Eaddy,
14	second.
15	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: All in favor, please say
16	aye.
17	(CHORUS OF AYES.)
18	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Any opposed?
19	(NO RESPONSE.)
20	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: The motion passes.
21	Our next regular pubic meeting will
22	be held Thursday, November 17th, at 7:30 p.m.
23	Whether this will be an in-person meeting or remote
24	meeting will be determined closer to the meeting

1	date.
2	The Police Board meets in executive
3	session to consider personnel matters and
4	litigation. Those discussions are closed to the
5	public as authorized by Sections 2(c)(1), (3), (4),
6	and (11) of the Illinois Open Meetings Act.
7	A summary of items discussed in the
8	executive sessions is posted in the minutes of the
9	meetings on our website.
10	Is there a motion to close future
11	executive sessions as authorized by the Open
12	Meetings Act?
13	VICE PRESIDENT WOLFF: Paula Wolff. So moved.
14	BOARD MEMBER EADDY: Michael Eaddy. Second.
15	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: All in favor, please say
16	aye.
17	(CHORUS OF AYES.)
18	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Any opposed?
19	(NO RESPONSE.)
20	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: The motion passes.
21	We have two announcements of
22	disciplinary rulings on the agenda today. Board
23	Member Cusack and I will make these announcements.
24	Board Member Cusack.

1 BOARD MEMBER CUSACK: Thank you. I was randomly selected from the Police Board's membership to consider one matter in which the Chief 3 Administrator of the Civilian Office of Police 5 Accountability and the Superintendent of Police did not agree regarding the discipline of two police 6 officers. 7 In request for review numbers 22-20 and 21, the Chief Administrator recommended 9 10 discipline for Police Officers Gregory Smith and 11 Betty Whitfield of a suspension of 180 days, up to 12 and including -- can you hear me? 13 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Yes, we can. If everyone 14 can ensure they're on mute so we can avoid 15 background noise. 16 BOARD MEMBER CUSACK: Thank you. I was 17 requested to review numbers 22-20 and 21. 18 Administrator recommended discipline for Police 19 Officers Gregory Smith and Betty Whitfield of a 20 suspension of 180 days, up to and including 21 discharge from the Chicago Police Department for rule violations stemming from an attempt to stop a 22 23 vehicle that fled and crashed. 2.4 The Superintendent did not agree with

these recommendations and proposed less discipline 1 for Officers Smith and Whitfield. 2 After considering this matter, it is 3 my opinion that the Superintendent did not meet the 4 burden of overcoming the Chief Administrator's 5 recommendation for discipline. 6 A copy of the written opinion will be 7 posted on the Board's website as required by the 8 Municipal Code. 9 10 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Thank you. 11 I also was randomly selected from the 12 Police Board's membership to consider one matter on which the Chief Administrator of the Civilian Office 13 14 of Police Accountability and the Superintendent of 15 Police did not agree regarding the discipline of a 16 police officer. 17 In request for review number 22-22, 18 the Chief Administrator recommended that Police 19 Officer Eric Stillman be discharged from the Chicago 20 Police Department for violating CPD rules when he 21 fatally shot Adam Toledo on March 29th, 2021. 22 The Superintendent did not agree with 23 this recommendation and proposed less discipline for Officer Stillman. 2.4

1

2

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

of the incident.

I reviewed the Chief Administrator's recommendation, the Superintendent's response, and the Chief Administrator's objection to the response. I also reviewed video recordings of the shooting, the CPD general order, and foot pursuit bulletin, and Officer Stillman's statement to COPA. Superintendent made a number of convincing points in his response to the Chief Administrator's recommendation; however, in this case, the material I reviewed does not provide a sufficient basis for me to rule that the Superintendent met the burden to overcome the recommendation. It is my opinion, based on thorough review of the material, the parties and the public will benefit from a full evidentiary hearing on this matter, and so referring this matter for hearing before the Police Board is the appropriate next step. This hearing will allow the Board to hear from use-of-force experts the parties call to testify, and will allow the Board to thoroughly review relevant evidence, including video recordings

Officer Stillman will also be afforded

1	the opportunity to testify before the Board
2	providing context and explanations surrounding the
3	incident depicted on the video recording. Let me be
4	clear. With this ruling, I am not saying that the
5	Chief Administrator's recommendation is right and
6	that the Superintendent is wrong, nor am I saying
7	that Officer Stillman should be suspended while this
8	case is pending before the Police Board. Rather, I
9	am saying that a Police Board hearing that provides
10	due process to all parties is necessary to determine
11	whether Officer Stillman violated any of the Chicago
12	Police Department's rules of conduct; and if so, the
13	appropriate disciplinary action.
14	A copy of the written opinion will be
15	posted on the Board's website by the Municipal Code.
16	Next, Superintendent, if you can
17	provide your report, please.
18	SUPERINTENDENT BROWN: Thank you, President
19	Foreman. And thank you to all the Police Board
20	members and guests.
21	I also want to have a special
22	acknowledgement of Deputy Mayor for Public Safety
23	Elena Gottreich, as well.
24	The Chicago Police Department is

1 committed to visibility, engagement, and 2 collaboration. We are making significant progress in 3 reducing gun violence in Chicago. Homicides are 4 down 17 percent. That's 118 fewer victims of 5 homicide this year compared to last year. And 6 shooting victims are down 21 percent. And that's 7 774 fewer victims of shootings this year compared to 8 9 last year. 10 Officers have taken over 10,000 guns 11 off the streets of Chicago, and every gun taken off 12 the street is a potential life saved. 13 Department's also increasing its focus on motor vehicle thefts around the City. Motor 14 15 vehicle thefts remain a key driver in other crimes 16 such as robberies and drive-by shootings. The Bureau of Patrol and the Bureau of 17 18 Detectives are working together to leverage their assets to collaterally address the issue and hold 19 20 offenders accountable. 21 In addition, we've also seen progress 22 in our increased presence across the CTA. Month to 23 date, this month October, compared to October in 2.4 2021, we're seeing violent crime reduced by 17

percent and overall crime on the CTA, month to date, 1 reduced by 19 percent. 2 We'll work with the community and in 3 the community. We know we have to, especially in 4 our outreach efforts and recruitment efforts, 5 improve our ability to work with the community. 6 This morning, just this morning, we 7 began another round of in-person entrance exams for 8 the Department to hire new Chicago police officers. 9 10 The exams will go through the weekend and take place 11 at each of the City Colleges of Chicago. 12 Since the start of the year, we've 13 seen 693 recruits -- new recruits hired for this That's more recruits hired than the 14 year alone. 15 last three years combined. I'll say that again, 16 because we're making significant progress in our 17 recruiting effort. 693 recruits hired so far this 18 year are the most we've hired the last three years 19 combined. 20 And it's a diverse workforce that 21 we're seeing come through the ranks. Every new 22 recruit represents the next generation of the City's 23 brave quardians. 24 We're offering our next round of

in-person exams in December of this year, as we 1 continue recruiting at our historically black 2 colleges and universities, minority-serving 3 institutions and military basis across the country. This past week we were at the International 5 Association of Chiefs of Police annual conference. 6 I joined law enforcement leaders from around the world to discuss the issues our cities face. And 8 not surprisingly, we all face the same issues across 9 10 this country and internationally with recruiting, 11 with gun violence. So we are all in agreement that 12 we must continue doing all we can to grow community 13 trust. We know that's how we build an effective 14 department, because trust and partnerships are 15 crucial to enhancing public safety in Chicago. 16 Thank you very much. 17 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Thank you. Chief 18 Administrator Kersten, if you'd like to provide your 19 report, please. 20 CHIEF KERSTEN: Thank you, President Foreman. 21 And thank you to everyone who is on the call this 22 evening and all the departments and work that each 23 of you represent individually. 24 Just to provide some general updates

from COPA, over the last month, we received 503 1 complaints and notifications. Of those, 88 remained 2 under COPA's jurisdiction. And as I typically 3 report out on, we saw again in this last month that 4 5 the highest type of incident, the number-one incident complained of, was 29 percent of improper 6 search and seizure or Fourth Amendment-related 7 allegations. There were three officer-involved 8 shooting notifications received in the last month. 9 10 And then of all the cases that COPA closed in the 11 last month, 12 percent of those cases involved 12 sustained allegations of misconduct. 13 Something that I talk about 14 frequently, the Superintendent has certainly heard 15 me say it, but it doesn't always feel obvious on 16 nights like tonight, but the reality is COPA and the 17 Police Department tend to agree on more than we 18 disagree when it comes to these disciplinary cases. 19 And we saw that again this month with the cases that 20 In addition to our recommendations and we closed. 21 findings on investigations, COPA also had two video 22 releases under the City's video release policy. And 23 then we had 17 community engagement events that

spanned all over the City. One that we're

24

particularly proud of was our final vacant lot cleanup that we did as an agency in the South Shore community. That was an effort that we undertook over the last few months, sort of following the City's leadership and recognizing that the cleaning and greening of vacant lots contributes directly to all of our public safety.

I'd also like to take the opportunity to lift up that COPA was able to present before City Council earlier this year for our budget hearing and had the opportunity to highlight a lot of the good work that is underway at this agency.

One thing in particular that came up out of that budget hearing, and, again, is something I reported out on this call month over month, is that we have seen a significant uptick in cases year over year of officer-initiated complaints, whether they're reporting something that they witnessed a fellow officer doing or reporting out on something that a citizen reported to them.

I think what's important to recognize is not necessarily that this means there's exponentially more misconduct taking place, but instead that the principles of reform and

accountability that the Superintendent is leading his Department towards are beginning potentially to take shape. And that is one outcome that we see in that data. So just want to go lift up the work of the Department in those -- in that regard that's led to those efforts and seen those numbers shift in the last five years since COPA has been in existence.

1

2

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

And, lastly, I will just take this time, because it is October, and this is domestic violence awareness month. Domestic violence and cases of officer-perpetrated domestic violence are something that are within COPA's jurisdiction. have very talented and specialized staff on our special victims squad that handle those cases specifically. But what I think is important again to remind people is that, of course, domestic violence, and gender-based violence, and family violence extend into all corridors of our society. It's kind of an inescapable reality for many, many In fact, most likely people that you know. people. However, I think what's unique about sort of some of COPA'S and CPD's approach to addressing that issue when it comes to the cases under our jurisdiction are two different things that I'd like to highlight.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Number one, COPA's intentional exploration of partnership with the Chicago Department of Public Health's interesting and unique and innovative new program called People That Do Harm. The original origin of the program was about creating non-carceral options for counseling and other restorative principles for people that commit or perpetrate acts of domestic violence. And you might be wondering why does this matter for COPA. would like to be able to provide counseling resources for officers and provide an alternative to just straight disciplinary recommendations. often in these cases, the survivor of the abuse and the officer that may or may not have committed the abuse would benefit far more from counseling and some sort of restorative path, particularly if you're going to stay in a relationship. So finding appropriate and principled ways to achieve that is something that's really important to us as an agency. And I just wanted to lift up that work. Then, lastly, I know I talked about this before, but CPD and COPA do something that is truly unique in the way that we investigate both domestic violence allegations, as well as sexual

misconduct allegations, and that is conducting parallel investigations. CPD obviously handling and the very talented officers that are assigned to the Bureau of Internal Affairs that handle the criminal investigation for those incidents. And then COPA and our special victims squad working alongside them to partner in interviews -- sensitive interviews of the victims and survivors of these incidents, so that we can have one interview, as opposed to two or three separate times that a victim has to come and tell his or her story.

And so even just this week, we had multiple opportunities where we saw BIA sergeants and detectives here at our offices preparing for and executing sensitive trauma-informed interviews for survivors of some of those incidents. And I just really want to lift up the professionalism and the partnership that we have established, particularly under Chief Talley's leadership and all of the people that she has working on these critical issues. It is a service to our City to be doing this in ways that really try to think about the well-being of all parties involved. And I appreciate CPD's partnership in our efforts to do

that.

Lastly, just thank you to everyone for the professionalism that we all demonstrate in this work. Especially month in and month out on these calls. I know these calls aren't always easy and these subjects aren't -- these answers don't come easily to any of us. But I appreciate the professionalism that we all demonstrate every month. So thank you all for your service.

PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Thank you, Chief. I will now call upon members of the public who signed up in advance to speak. To make sure we have time to hear from all speakers, there's a two-minute time limit on comments. Our first speaker is Mia Bonds.

Please press \*6.

MS. BONDS: So my name is Mia and I'm here on behalf of the Chicago Youth Organizing Until Trauma Heals Council. We're a group of youth advocating for police accountability. And here are some of our updates from our council. So we are currently recruiting for new members for our council. Anyone who is between 16 and 25 and is interested in police accountability can apply for our council. And also we are planning our next community event, which will

1 be around Board registration. And that's our 2 updates. 3 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Thank you. Where can one find the application? 4 MS. BONDS: On our Instagram, which is CYCPA. 5 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: CYCPA\_ on Instagram for any 6 7 young people who are interested in applying or for anyone who wants to encourage any of their young 8 9 people to apply. Thank you, Mia. 10 Our next speaker, Crista Noel. 11 MS. NOEL: Hi. How's everybody? Okay. organization is very concerned about the amount of 12 13 police violence that's happened against women 14 recently, and so we will probably be addressing that 15 and speaking out for the victims very soon. 16 I did want to say that the Police 17 Department has nothing to do with funding for the 18 folks that have been affected by violence. And it 19 sounded as if the Deputy Mayor was thanking them, 20 something like that. 21 One of the concerns I have right now 22 is that it's come to our attention, the Consent 23 Decree Coalition, that a black man named Elijah was 24 driving a rather expensive car and was stopped and

1 surrounded by police who arrested him, even though he had a conceal and carry permit. 2 So we're wondering if he has been released at this point. 3 And we're also wondering why he was arrested when he 4 5 had a permit. 6 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: I can follow up with you to get a little bit more additional details, Crista. 7 Maybe Max can follow up with you and get some more 8 specifics on that one and we can coordinate from 9 10 there. 11 MS. NOEL: Okay. I got video, so I will send 12 the video and the pictures to Max so he can see, you 13 know, how many police officers surrounded one man in 14 an expensive car. 15 But we consider this quite ridiculous. And, you know, if you're going to 16 17 arrest us even though we have conceal and carry and 18 permits and you're going to kill us even though we have FOIA cards and stuff, we really need to have 19 20 some sit-down conversations about how the Police 21 Department is responding to black people with legal 22 weapons. 23 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Thank you. 24 Our next speaker, Anna Santoyo.

1 Santoyo. If you can press \*6 to unmute. 2 Our next --3 MS. SANTOYO: Can you hear me? PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Yes. 5 MS. SANTOYO: Hello? PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Good evening. We can hear 6 7 you. MS. SANTOYO: First I want to express my 8 9 deepest condolences to the family of Adam Toledo. 10 The fact that this case is being brought to an 11 entire Police Board shows that Superintendent David 12 Brown's decision-making process is flawed. 13 He has defended Proud Boy member Robert Brakker from being fired. He protected Evan 14 15 Solano and Sammy Encarnacion. And he has been 16 consistent in his defense of the cops' murder. The 17 fact that David Brown recommended a five-day 18 suspension for the killing of a teenager, a 13-year-old child, this is the public's time to 19 20 And David Brown should know that he should speak. 21 be ashamed of himself that he thinks that a CPD only 22 deserves a five-day suspension, that is his 23 recommendation, as a fitting punishment for shooting 2.4 a child.

1 The decision raises more questions 2 about Anthony Alvarez's case. If using similar arguments to defend Eric Stillman, Evan Solano were 3 used -- how a single board member allowed to decide 4 5 that Evan Solano should be cleared. Anthony, at the very least, deserves 6 the same treatment, a full, open review, and 7 investigation must be started into the handling of 8 Anthony Alvarez's murder. 9 10 Allegation five that's listed in the 11 report is the exact same allegation that Evan Solano 12 was cleared of by Steven Block on this Board. 13 The inconsistencies with these two 14 rulings are exactly why an unelected mayor-appointed 15 superintendent and Police Board cannot be the 16 arbitrators of justice. The facts of this case is clear. 17 18 Adam Toledo is gone. Anthony Alvarez is gone. 19 Killer cop Evan Solano, and Sammy Encarnacion, and 20 Eric Stillman are still employed when they should be 21 fired and charged. 22 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Sorry. Your time is up. 23 I'm going to use this opportunity to address some of the comments that I just heard. 2.4

This is a challenging issue, and I was 1 faced with the decision that Board Member Block was 2 faced with a couple of weeks ago in making this 3 decision. And, again, it is not to say that the decision that I made is a right one. I struggled a 5 lot with this. And much in the same way that Steven 6 struggled with his decision. 7 One thing I will agree with is that 8 this process is flawed. I do not believe that it 9 10 should be up to one Board Member to make this 11 decision. It was a hard decision. I lost nights of 12 sleep. Steven lost nights of sleep over making this 13 decision. So if there's one thing that I will agree 14 with, it is that. 15 The Superintendent has challenging 16 decisions that he has to make. 17 COPA has a challenging decision that 18 they have to make with these cases. 19 And despite what the public may think 20 from reading a few paragraphs or seeing something on 21 television, the details that we get is a lot more 22 than what the public gets a chance to see in great 23 detail. 24 And so, Superintendent, I understand

the challenge that you have when making these 1 decisions. Chief Administrator, I understand the 2 tough decision. So the thing that I would like us 3 to consider, both as a Board, as residents of the 4 Chicago, a recommendation to our City Council is 5 that we take a good look at this rule about one 6 person making the decision. I don't think it's fair 7 to the public. I don't think it's fair to the 8 officers. And I don't think it's fair to the 9 10 members of the Police Board. It opens us up to 11 public criticism, which is unfair. And yet it's 12 something that we have to do. And so I think Steven 13 was very brave for the decision that he made a 14 couple of weeks ago. And I continue to stand by the 15 decision he made. 16 There's going to be people who don't 17 like his decision. There's going to be people that 18 don't like my decision. I understand that. 19 When we step up to serve in this role, 20 that comes with the job. 21 So for those who are applying for this 22 incredible position, this honor of serving the people of Chicago , this is what we have to live 23 24 with.

1	And so I know typically I wouldn't
2	respond directly to your comments, and I think that
3	you absolutely have the right to make the comments
4	in the way that you that you feel, but I think
5	there's a lot more nuance to it.
6	Next speaker, Eunice Chatman-Regis.
7	MS. CHATMAN-REGIS: Hello. Can you hear me?
8	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Yes, ma'am.
9	MS. CHATMAN-REGIS: I'm the active member
10	representing 79th and Eberhart Block Club and
11	Coalition of Chatham Area Block Club.
12	Our concerns continue to involve
13	Family Fresh Meet Market, 457 East 79th Street. But
14	the lack of improvement and quality of life in our
15	neighborhood. I've been making presentations for
16	the Board since September 2020, same issues.
17	Nevertheless, no change, unacceptable activities.
18	If anything, things have gotten worse. Last night
19	there were 18 rounds. Sound like an automatic rifle
20	in our area. There still exists sale of loose
21	cigarettes. Loitering, even though there's
22	no-trespassing signs posted.
23	Store on 457 East 79th been closed
24	due to violence and health violations. Opened again

under a different family name. 440 East 80th 1 Still young, black men and women are 2 squatters in that building. The building was 3 boarded up. Police come and say they can't do 4 5 anything. 6 I've seen the squatters at 440 East 80th Street entering and leaving and it's boarded 7 up. 443 East 80th Street, squatters, young, black 8 9 males. They allegedly steal cars and hide them over 10 They dress in black-and-white tops and black there. 11 Sometimes they wear red baseball caps. 12 They carry black bookbags. I'm not sure of the gym 13 shoe colors. 14 7905 to 7909 Eberhart, 15 multi-apartment building, increased loitering and 16 selling of drugs outside the building. They got 17 crates they sit on and they leave there overnight. 18 There's no loitering signs posted on the building. 19 And also there's no owner of the building listed. 20 And that's serious and unacceptable, because that's 21 a law -- a building code violation, you supposed to have the owner's contact number posted on the 22 23 building if they don't live at the property. 24 Our quality of life is compromised

and threatened because many families live on the 1 block, 7900 South Eberhart. 3 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Sorry. Your time is up. Supe, there were a lot of issue taking place in Ms. 4 5 Chatman-Regis' conversation. SUPERINTENDENT BROWN: I'd like the opportunity 6 to follow up either through Max or Chief of Patrol 7 Chief McDermott who is on this meeting, can follow 8 9 up and get some actions done over there, particularly with hanging out and some of the 10 11 allegations that I heard from Ms. Chatman. 12 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Thank you. If we can 13 coordinate with the Building Department to ensure 14 the -- one residential address to make sure that 15 that contact information is available. 16 right. That's supposed to be posted. 17 If there's some simple fixes that we can take care of, I think that would be great for us 18 19 to do. 20 SUPERINTENDENT BROWN: We will get right on it. 21 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Thank you. 22 Our next speaker Lolita Hendrix. 23 you can press \*6, please. 24 MS. HENDRIX: Can you hear me?

1 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Yes, ma'am. Good evening. MS. HENDRIX: My name is Lolita Hendrix. And I'm calling in regards to the murder of my niece 3 Treasure Nicole Hendrix. She was found dead in an 4 RV vehicle owned by police officer -- or no longer 5 Police Officer Charlie Bell. He was allowed by the 6 Police Department to retire seven days after her 7 murder. There was no full investigation done. 8 9 I still await a response from the September 22nd Police Board meeting where I asked 10 11 for transparency on the closure of my niece's death 12 investigation. 13 The officer who closed the case, 14 Detective Montanaro, had to get approval from 15 someone. But how could he have gotten approval for 16 a case closed when no one ever talked to the family? 17 No one ever talked to our friends. No one ever 18 talked to Treasure's friends. We grieve. We mourn. 19 And we want justice for her loss of life. 20 We found her at the morque. No one 21 called us. Nobody told us anything. We did it on a 22 lark. 23 So it is not an easy call that I am 2.4 making tonight, but I feel like somebody is

responsible for her lost life. Not only that, COPA 1 was there. They did an autopsy on her and all of 2 3 these people were present. We didn't get any information. 4 5 So our question is, who is responsible and why has no one reached out to the 6 7 family? PRESIDENT FOREMAN: First, my condolences to 8 9 you and the family. 10 Superintendent or Chief Deenihan, is there anything specific that you can speak to? 11 12 SUPERINTENDENT BROWN: Probably more 13 appropriate to follow up offline. I'm not sure when 14 all of this happened, but we will certainly dedicate 15 the resources to follow up and find out some more 16 details about this case. 17 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Okay. So, Max or Jazmyne, 18 can you ensure that the Superintendent gets Ms. Hendrix's contact information? 19 20 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CAPRONI: Yes, I will do 21 that. 22 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Thank you. 23 MS. HENDRIX: You can find me --24 PRESIDENT FOREMAN: We're live. We have your

1 contact information. We'll make sure we pass it 2 along. 3 MS. HENDRIX: I appreciate it. PRESIDENT FOREMAN: Thank you. 4 Our next speaker, Evangel Yhwhnewbn. 5 Evangel Yhwhnewbn. If you can press \*6. 6 Our final speaker is Robert More. 7 More, if you can press \*6 on one of your phones, not 8 9 both. 10 MR. MORE: Mr. Foreman, can you hear me? 11 Yes, sir. PRESIDENT FOREMAN: 12 MR. MORE: Okay. I was going to specifically 13 address the Chicago's children in this conveyance 14 and also Federal Grand Jury foreperson, but I have 15 to put that on hold right now. 16 This is (inaudible) all things other 17 than its defense must be given second place. 18 DVD (inaudible) March 1938 Pope Pius XII, because that was 464 months because obviously began the 19 20 practice of mental prayer, but cannot get into the 21 goals and conveyance schedule you posted that day in 22 (inaudible). 23 RJM presentation from the world 24 theological formula of held is the Doctrine of

Double Effect (inaudible) by this place. And the 1 lesser defective Catholic (inaudible) Jesus Christ. 2 RJM here observes that (inaudible) of any nominal 3 government whatever the clear mediary in any given 4 5 instance by the incarnation of the Committee of the Rather the moral obligation for any and 6 all (inaudible) eliminated and to keep possible the 7 conflict objective (inaudible) the Catholic 8 9 wherefore respectively established. 10 The Superintendent is present at the 11 meeting, correct? 12 THE COURT: Correct. 13 MR. MORE: The Superintendent present? Okay. 14 Gun violence -- I'm going to get this in. 15 violence. From what sorts of authority has already 16 been (inaudible) derived gun violence, quote 17 unquote, then or ever would be used by you in the 18 conveyance of the law from the office you now In light of the estimated 300 to 400 19 occupy. 20 billion human beings built by their own government 21 respectively in the 20th Century regarding 22 universe-wide RJ Rummel, the vast majority of 23 killings were perpetrated by disarmed and/or 2.4 otherwise unarmed citizens. How could it possibly

1	be justified gun violence rather than the term gun
2	control violence. Gun control works. Ask the
3	experts, Hitler, Saul and Mahl. This vilification,
4	humanization of guns, guns is what keeps us free.
5	Okay? And in the capacity military capacity, the
6	right to keep and bear arms. That is a precious,
7	precious
8	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: I'm sorry, Mr. More. Your
9	time is up.
10	At this time, all members of the
11	public who signed up to speak have been called. Is
12	there a motion to adjourn?
13	VICE PRESIDENT WOLFF: So moved. Paula Wolff.
14	BOARD MEMBER EADDY: Second. Michael Eaddy.
15	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: All in favor, please say
16	aye.
17	(CHORUS OF AYES.)
18	PRESIDENT FOREMAN: The motion passes and the
19	meeting is adjourned.
20	Thank you, all, and have a good
21	evening.
22	(WHEREUPON, the proceedings
23	adjourned at 8:23 p.m.)
24	

1	STATE OF ILLINOIS ) ) SS:
2	COUNTY OF C O O K )
3	
4	MAUREEN A. WOODMAN, C.S.R., being first duly
5	sworn, says that she is a court reporter doing
6	business in the City of Chicago; that she reported
7	in shorthand the proceedings had at the hearing of
8	said cause; that the foregoing is a true and correct
9	transcript of her shorthand notes, so taken as
10	aforesaid, and contains all the proceedings of said
11	hearing.
12	
13	
14	Mant boling
15	MAUREEN A. WOODMAN, CSR
16	License No. 084.002740
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	

	2021		accountabilit
(	15:21 18:24	6	У
	20th		4:1 6:2,19
(11)	2:5 39:21	6	7:3,6 8:8,
13:6	21	26:15 29:1	12,16 10:14,
(3)	14:9,17 18:7	35:23 38:6,8	17 11:1 14:5
13:5	22-20	693	15:14 23:1
(4)	14:8,17	19:13,17	26:19,23
13:5	22-22		accountable
13.3	15:17		18:20
	22nd	7	accused
1	36:10	774	8:18
10 000	25	18:8	achieve
10,000	26:22		24:18
18:10	29	<b>7900</b> 35:2	acknowledgeme
118	21:6		nt
18:5	29th	7905	17:22
12	15:21	34:14	across
8:5 21:11	13.21	7909	18:22 20:4,9
13-year-old		34:14	Act
29:19	3	79th	2:10 13:6,12
15th		33:10,13,23	action
12:6	30	7:30	17:13
16	7:12	12:22	actions
26:22	300	7th	35:9
17	39:6,19	7:12,14	active
18:5,24			33:9
21:23	4	8	activities
17th			33:17
12:22	400	80th	acts
18	39:19	34:1,7,8	24:8
33:19	440	88	
180	34:1,6	21:2	Adam 15:21 29:9
14:11,20	443	8:23	30:18
18th	34:8	40:23	
12:2	457		addition 3:1 18:21
19	33:13,23		21:20
19:2	464	A	
1938	38:19	ability-	additional
38:18		ability	10:2 28:7
			address
	5	<b>able</b>	18:19 30:23
2	E03	22:9 24:10	35:14 38:13
2(a)(1)	503 21:1	absolutely	addressing
2(c)(1) 13:5	71.1	33:3	23:22 27:14
		abuse	adjourn
2020		24:13,15	40:12
33:16			

adjourned	24:24 25:1	applications	attempt
40:19,23	35:11	7:14,16	14:22
administratio	allegedly	apply	attendance
n	34:9	6:14 9:20,23	3:3
10:15	allow	26:23 27:9	attention
administrativ	16:19,21	applying	27:22
е	allowed	27:7 32:21	audio
10:14	30:4 36:6	appreciate	2:20
Administrator	alongside	25:24 26:7	August
3:24 14:4,9,	25:6	38:3	12:2
18 15:13,18	alternative	approach	authority
20:18 32:2	24:11	23:22	39:15
Administrator	Alvarez	appropriate	authorized
'ន	30:18	16:17 17:13	13:5,11
15:5 16:1,3,	Alvarez's	24:18 37:13	automatic
8 17:5	30:2,9	approval	33:19
advance	Amendment-	36:14,15	autopsy
26:12	related	approve	37:2
advise	21:7	12:1,6	available
6:12	amount	arbitrators	10:1 35:15
advocating	27:12	30:16	avoid
26:18	and/or	area	14:14
Affairs	39:23	33:11,20	await
4:8 25:4	Andrea	arguments	36:9
affected	4:1	30:3	awareness
27:18	Angel	arms	23:10
afforded	4:18	40:6	aye
16:24	Anna	around	12:16 13:16
agency	28:24	18:14 20:7	40:16
22:2,12	announcements	27:1	AYES
24:20	13:21,23	arrest	12:17 13:17
agenda	annual	28:17	40:17
5:16,17	20:6	arrested	
13:22	answers	28:1,4	В
ago	26:6	ashamed	
31:3 32:14	Anthony	29:21	back
agree	30:2,6,9,18	asked	9:8
14:6,24	anyone	36:10	background
15:15,22	10:1 26:21	assets	2:22 5:19
21:17 31:8,	27:8	18:19	14:15
13	apologize	assigned	baseball
agreement	11:11	25:3	34:11
20:11	application	assisting	based
allegation	6:5,23,24	6:19	16:13
30:10,11	7:8,12,13	Association	basis
allegations	27:4	20:6	16:10 20:4
21:8,12			

bear	10:17 11:6,	Brown's	28:14
40:6	19 12:1,4,13	29:12	cards
began	13:2,14,22,	budget	28:19
19:8 38:19	24 14:1,16	22:10,14	care
begin	16:17,19,21	build	35:18
3:3	17:1,8,9,19	10:21,22	careful
beginning	27:1 29:11	20:13	8:24
23:2	30:4,12,15	building	carried
behalf	31:2,10	34:3,15,16,	2:20
26:17	32:4,10	18,19,21,23	
	33:16 36:10	35:13	carry
beings	40:14	built	28:2,17
39:20	Board's	39:20	34:12
believe	2:5 12:2,6	bulletin	cars
31:9	14:2 15:8,12		34:9
Bell	17:15	16:5	Carter
36:6	boarded	burden	5:11,14
benefit	34:4,7	15:5 16:11	case
16:15 24:15	bodies	Bureau	16:9 17:8
better	11:9	4:8,11,14	29:10 30:2,
9:5	Bonds	18:17 25:4	17 36:13,16
Betty	26:14,16		37:16
14:11,19	27:5	С	cases
BIA	bookbags		21:10,11,18,
25:13	34:12	call	19 22:16
billion		9:15 16:20	23:11,14,23
39:20	bottoms 34:11	20:21 22:15	24:13 31:18
bit		26:11 36:23	Catholic
8:5 28:7	Boy	called	39:2,8
black	29:13	24:4 36:21	CCPSA
20:2 27:23	Brakker	40:11	11:6,20
28:21 34:2,	29:14	calling	central
8,10,12	brave	2:5 36:3	11:1
black-and-	19:23 32:13	calls	Century
white	breaking	11:14 26:5	39:21
34:10	8:18	CAN-TV	certain
block	Brendan	2:21	2:17
3:9,10 30:12	4:15	candidates	certainly
31:2 33:10,	Brian	6:3	9:20 21:14
11 35:2	4:12	capacity	37:14
board	brought	40:5	challenge
2:4 3:1,6,9,	29:10	Caproni	32:1
10,11,13,14,	Brown	5:6,7,9	challenges
16,17,18,19,	3:22,23	37:20	9:13
20 5:6,24	17:18 29:17,		challenging
6:9,15,16	20 35:6,20	<b>caps</b>   34:11	9:11 31:1,
7:8,12,24	37:12		15,17
8:5,13 9:21		car 11:12 27:24	10,11
		11.12 2/.24	
	I	1	I

<b>chance</b> 9:3,16 31:22	32:2 35:7,8 37:10	click 7:5	commit 24:7
change 33:17	Chiefs 20:6	<b>close</b> 13:10	committed 18:1 24:14
charge	<b>child</b> 29:19,24	closed	Committee
10:12		13:4 21:10,	39:5
charged	children	20 33:23	communities
30:21	38:13	36:13,16	10:22
Charlie	<b>choose</b> 7:20	closer	community
36:6		12:24	6:1,18 7:2,5
Chatham	CHORUS	closure	8:11 9:14,16
33:11	12:17 13:17	36:11	10:16 11:10,
Chatman	40:17	Club	17 19:3,4,6
35:11	chosen	33:10,11	20:12 21:23
Chatman-regis 33:6,7,9	6:17 Christ	Coalition 27:23 33:11	22:3 26:24 compared
Chatman-	39:2	code	18:6,8,23 complained
regis'	cigarettes	15:9 17:15	
35:5 Chicago	33:21 cities	34:21 collaboration	21:6 complaints 21:2 22:17
2:4,13 4:5,7 5:24 6:11	20:8 citizen	11:8 18:2 collaterally	compromised 34:24
8:4 10:24 11:13,22 14:21 15:19	22:20 citizens	18:19 colleges 19:11 20:3	conceal 28:2,17
17:11,24	39:24	colors	concerned 27:12
18:4,11	City	34:13	
19:9,11 20:15 24:2	2:13 3:2 4:5 6:11 18:14 19:11 21:24	combined 19:15,19	concerns 27:21 33:12
26:17 32:5,	22:9 25:21	come	conditions 2:17
23	32:5	19:21 25:10	
Chicago's	City's	26:7 27:22	condolences 29:9 37:8
38:13	6:1 10:5	34:4	
Chicagoan	19:22 21:22	comes	conduct
9:2	22:5	8:16 21:18	17:12
Chicagoans 6:21 7:23	<b>Civilian</b> 4:1 14:4	23:23 32:20 comment	conducting 25:1
9:23 11:2,15	15:13 cleaning	5:21	conference
Chief		comments	2:20 20:6
3:24 4:3,7,	22:5	5:18 26:14	conflict
10,11,13,14,	cleanup	30:24 33:2,3	39:8
16,17 14:3, 9,17 15:5, 13,18 16:1,	22:2 clear	Commission 6:1,6,18	Consent 27:22
3,8 17:5	3:4 17:4	7:2,5,11,18	consider
20:17,20	30:17 39:4	8:10 10:1,16	13:3 14:3
25:19 26:10	<b>cleared</b> 30:5,12	Commissioner 6:4,7,8 10:3	15:12 28:15 32:4

considering	<b>copy</b>   15:7 17:14	<b>Crista</b>	debilitative
consistent 29:16	<b>correct</b> 39:11,12	critical 8:6 25:20	Deborah 4:5
Constitutiona	corridors 23:18	criticism 32:11	December 20:1
4:18,20	council	crucial	decide
contact	22:10 26:18,	20:15	30:4
34:22 35:15	20,21,23	CTA	decision
37:19 38:1	32:5	18:22 19:1	9:9 30:1
context	Counsel	Cusack	31:2,4,5,7,
17:2	4:22,24	3:12,13	11,13,17
continue	counseling	13:23,24	32:3,7,13,
20:2,12	24:6,10,15	14:1,16	15,17,18
32:14 33:12	country	CYCPA	decision-
continues	20:4,10	27:5,6	making
2:15	couple		29:12
contributes	31:3 32:14	D	decisions
22:6	course		31:16 32:2
control	23:16	Dana	Decree
40:2	court	4:23	27:23
conversation	2:23 39:12	dark	dedicate
35:5	COVID-19	11:11	37:14
conversations	2:8,15	data	Deenihan
28:20	CPD	23:4	4:15,16 37:10
conveyance	15:20 16:5	date	deepest
38:13,21 39:18	24:22 25:2 29:21	12:3 13:1	29:9
		18:23 19:1	defective
convincing	CPD's 4:19 23:22	David	39:2
coordinate	25:24	3:22 29:11,	defend
28:9 35:13	crashed	17,20	30:3
cop	14:23	<b>day</b>   9:12 38:21	defended
30:19	crates		29:13
COPA	34:17	days 7:13 14:11,	defense
10:17 11:6,	created	20 36:7	29:16 38:17
20 16:6	6:23	dead	definitely
21:1,10,16,	creating	36:4	9:23
21 22:9 23:7	24:5	deadline	demonstrate
24:9,22 25:5	crime	7:15	26:3,8
31:17 37:1	11:17 18:24	deal	department
COPA's	19:1	9:15	4:8 10:12,13
21:3 23:12,	crimes	dealing	11:7,19
22 24:1	18:15	8:17	14:21 15:20
cops'	criminal	death	17:24 19:9
29:16	25:4	36:11	20:14 21:17
			23:2,5 24:2

27:17 28:21	disaster	drugs	Elena
35:13 36:7	2:14	34:16	5:3 10:5
Department's	discharge	due	17:23
17:12 18:13	14:21	2:14 7:14	Elijah
departments	discharged	17:10 33:24	27:23
20:22	15:19	DVD	eliminated
depicted	disciplinary	38:18	39:7
17:3	13:22 17:13		employed
Deputy	21:18 24:12	E	30:20
5:1,2,4,10,	discipline		Encarnacion
13,14 10:6,	14:6,10,18	e-mail	29:15 30:19
8,9,11 11:24	15:1,6,15,23	7:10	encourage
17:22 27:19	discuss	Eaddy	9:6,19,23
derived	20:8	3:17,18	27:8
39:16	discussed	12:4,13	encouraged
deserves	13:7	13:14 40:14	11:7
29:22 30:6	discussions	earlier	end
detail	13:4	22:10	5:17
31:23	disease	easily	enforcement
details	2:15	26:7	10:19 20:7
28:7 31:21 37:16	disruptions	East	engagement
	2:22 5:20	33:13,23	18:1 21:23
Detective 36:14	diverse	34:1,6,8	enhancing
	8:22 19:20	easy	20:15
<b>detectives</b> 4:15 18:18	Doctrine	26:5 36:23	ensure
25:14	38:24	Eberhart	6:13 14:14 35:13 37:18
determine	doing 11:21 20:12	33:10 34:14 35:2	
17:10	22:19 25:21		ensuring 6:21
determined	domestic	ecosystem 10:21 11:2	
2:10 12:24	23:9,10,11,	Effect	entering 34:7
different	16 24:8,24	39:1	entire
23:24 34:1	Doorley	effective	29:11
direct	3:15,16	20:13	entrance
9:18	Double	effects	19:8
directions	39:1	11:17	equitably
7:9	dress	effort	10:22
directly	34:10	19:17 22:3	Eric
6:17 22:6	drive-by	efforts	5:11 15:19
33:2	18:16	19:5 23:6	30:3,20
Director	driver	25:24	established
4:19,21 5:5,	18:15	either	25:18 39:9
7,9 37:20	driving	35:7	estimated
disagree	27:24	electronicall	39:19
21:18	drop-down	У	Eunice
disarmed	7:4	7:9	33:6
39:23			

Evan	expensive	favor	flawed
29:14 30:3,	27:24 28:14	12:15 13:15	29:12 31:9
5,11,19	experience 9:22	40:15	fled
Evangel		Federal 38:14	14:23
38:5,6	experts		focus
<pre>evening   2:1,2 3:3</pre>	16:20 40:3	feedback 5:2	18:13
5:14,15 6:4	explanations		FOIA
10:5,9,10	17:2	feel 11:3 21:15	28:19
20:22 29:6	exploration	33:4 36:24	folks
36:1 40:21	24:1	fellow	27:18
event	exponentially 22:23	22:19	follow
26:24		fewer	28:6,8 35:7, 8 37:13,15
events	express 29:8	18:5,8	
21:23		fill	following 22:4
everybody	extend	7:13	
11:20 27:11	23:18	filled	<b>foot</b> 16:5
everyone		7:10	Foreman
2:1,2 6:12	F	filling	2:1,3 3:9,
10:10 14:13	£	6:20	11,14,17,19,
20:21 26:2	face	final	21,24 4:4,7,
evidence	20:8,9	22:1 38:7	11,14,17,22
16:22	<b>faced</b> 9:14 11:16	find	5:1,5,8,13,
evidentiary	31:2,3	7:3 27:4	15 6:9 8:3
16:15	fact	37:15,23	10:4,10
Eww	23:20 29:10,	finding	11:21,24
9:8	17	24:17	12:5,10,15,
exact	facts	findings	18,20 13:15,
30:11	30:17	21:21	18,20 14:13
exactly	fail	finds	15:10 17:19
11:14 30:14	11:15	2:2	20:17,20
exams	fair	Fire	26:10 27:3,6 28:6,23
19:8,10 20:1	32:7,8,9	10:12	29:4,6 30:22
exclusive	faith	fired	33:8 35:3,
10:19	11:5	29:14 30:21	12,21 36:1
excuse	families	first	37:8,17,22,
12:3	35:1	5:10,13,14	24 38:4,10,
executing	family	26:14 29:8	11 40:8,15,
25:15	23:17 29:9	37:8	18
executive	33:13 34:1	fitting	foreperson
4:19,21 5:5,	36:16 37:7,9	29:23	38:14
7,9 13:2,8, 11 37:20	far	five	forgot
	19:17 24:15	23:7 30:10	5:10
<pre>existence 23:7</pre>	fatally	five-day	formula
exists	15:21	29:17,22	38:24
10:20 33:20		fixes 35:17	
		1 1 1 1 1 1	

found	17 38:12		Hendrix's
6:24 36:4,20	39:14	H	37:19
Fourth	good		hide
21:7	2:1 5:14,15	handle	34:9
free	10:9,10	23:14 25:4	highest
40:4	22:11 29:6	handling	21:5
frequently	32:6 36:1	25:2 30:8	highlight
21:14	40:20	hanging	22:11 23:24
Fresh	Gottreich	35:10	hire
33:13	5:3,4 10:5,	happened	19:9
friends	7,9 17:23	27:13 37:14	hired
36:17,18	government	happy	19:13,14,17,
frozen	7:4 39:4,20	9:22	18
12:8	governor's	hard	historically
full	2:14	8:21 31:11	6:16 20:2
11:5 16:15	Grand	Harm	Hitler
30:7 36:8	38:14	24:4	40:3
functions	great	heading	hold
10:14	6:11 7:22	7:7	18:19 38:15
funding	8:10 9:9	Heals	holding
27:17	31:22 35:18	26:18	2:10
fundraiser	greening	health	homicide
11:12	22:6	2:7,17 33:24	18:6
future	Gregory	Health's	Homicides
13:10	14:10,19	24:3	18:4
	grieve	hear	honor
G	36:18	9:16 12:9	32:22
	group	14:12 16:20	hope
gender-based	26:18	26:12 29:3,6	2:2 7:22
23:17	grow	33:7 35:24	How's
general	20:12	38:10	27:11
4:4,22,24	guardians	heard	human
16:5 20:24	19:23	21:14 30:24	39:20
generation	guests	35:11	humanization
19:22	17:20	hearing	40:4
Ghian	gun	16:15,16,19	
2:3	18:4,11	17:9 22:10,	I
given	20:11 39:14,	14	
9:10 38:17	16 40:1,2	held	IG
39:4	guns	12:22 38:24	11:20
goals	18:10 40:4	Hello	Illinois
38:21	guys 9:8	29:5 33:7	2:9 13:6
going		Hendrix	importance
7:1 24:17	gym 34:12	35:22,24	6:21 7:23
28:16,18	34.14	36:2,4 37:23	important
30:23 32:16,		38:3	8:9,15 9:9
	I	I	I

1	1 •	I • -
		Killer
		30:19
•		killing
		29:18
		killings
	-	39:23
24:3		kind
Inspector		9:3 23:19
4:4	5:16 13:7	know
Instagram		5:24 8:6
27:5,6	J	11:2 19:4
instance		20:13 23:20
39:5	Jazmyne	24:21 26:5
institutions	37:17	28:13,16
20:4	Jesus	29:20 33:1
intentional	39:2	
24:1	job	L
interested	9:7 32:20	
7:7 26:22	joined	lack
27:7	20:7	33:14
interesting	Jorge	larger
24:3	3:19	8:12
Internal	jurisdiction	lark
4:8 25:4	21:3 23:12,	36:22
International	23	lasting
20:5	Jury	10:24
international	38:14	lastly
ly	justice	23:8 24:21
20:10	30:16 36:19	26:2
interview	justified	law
7:17 25:9	40:1	10:19 20:7
interviews		34:21 39:18
25:7,15	к	leaders
introduced		20:7
11:21	keep	leadership
investigate	39:7 40:6	22:5 25:19
24:23		leading
investigation	11:15	23:1
25:5 30:8	Kersten	Learn
36:8,12		7:6
investigation	20	leave
s	key	34:17
	18:15	leaving
involve	kill	34:7
33:12	28:18	led
	Ī	23:5
		23.3
21:11 25:23		23.3
	Instagram	8:2 35:15       37:4,19 38:1         initiatives       10:8         innovative       24:3         24:3       24 20:8,9         24:3       25:21 33:16         Inspector       4:4         4:4       5:16 13:7         Instagram       27:5,6         institutions       39:5         institutions       37:17         20:4       Jesus         intentional       39:2         job       9:7 32:20         joined       20:7         interesting       20:7         24:3       Jury         Internal       jurisdiction         4:8 25:4       Jury         Internal       38:14         20:5       Jury         interview       30:16 36:19         20:10       justified         interviews       25:7,15         introduced       40:1         Investigate       39:7 40:6         keep       39:7 40:6         kept       11:15         Kersten       4:2,3 20:18,         20       key         18:15       kill

legal	loose	Market	12:4,13
28:21	33:20	33:13	13:14,23,24
lesser	loss	material	14:1,16
39:2	36:19	16:9,14	29:13 30:4
letting	lost	matter	31:2,10 33:9
8:1	31:11,12	14:3 15:3,12	40:14
leverage	37:1	16:16 24:9	members
18:18	lot	matters	2:21 3:1
life	8:7 22:1,11	13:3	5:18 6:10,
18:12 33:14	31:6,21 33:5	Max	14,16 7:18,
34:24 36:19	35:4	5:6 28:8,12	20 8:22
37:1	lots	35:7 37:17	9:14,16
lift	22:6	Mayor	17:20 26:11,
22:9 23:4		5:1,2,4 6:3,	21 32:10
24:20 25:17		17,20 7:19	40:10
light		10:6,9,11,18	membership
39:19	made	17:22 27:19	14:2 15:12
Lightfoot	9:8 16:7	mayor-	men
10:18	31:5 32:13,	appointed	34:2
limit	15	30:14	mental
26:13	Mahl	Mcdermott	38:20
link	40:3	4:12,13 35:8	mention
7:7	majority	meaningful	11:13
list	39:22	10:24	menu
5:11 7:20	make	means	7:4
listed	7:18 8:4	10:21 22:22	messages
30:10 34:19	11:22 12:12	mediary	11:9
litigation	13:23 26:12	39:4	met
13:4	31:10,16,18	meet	16:11
little	33:3 35:14	15:4 33:13	Mia
5:2 8:5 28:7	38:1	meeting	26:14,16
live	making	2:5,8,11,18,	27:9
2:20 32:23	2:23 9:5	19,23 3:4	Michael
34:23 35:1	18:3 19:16	5:16,21	3:17 12:13
37:24	31:3,12	12:7,21,23,	13:14 40:14
loitering	32:1,7 33:15	24 35:8	military
33:21 34:15,	36:24	36:10 39:11	20:4 40:5
18	males	40:19	minority-
Loizon	34:9	meetings	serving
6:4,8 10:3	man	2:10 13:6,9,	20:3
Lolita	9:8 27:23	12	minutes
35:22 36:2	28:13	meets	12:2 13:8
longer	March	13:2	misconduct
36:5	15:21 38:18	member	21:12 22:23 25:1
look	Mareilé	3:9,10,11,	
12:3 32:6	3:11	13,14,16,17, 18,19,20	Montanaro 36:14
		10,19,20	30.14

Montes 3:19,20	26:16 34:1 36:2	November 7:14 12:22	17:7,11 22:19 24:14
month	named		36:5,6,13
2:18 9:8	27:23	nuance 33:5	officer-
			initiated
18:22,23 19:1 21:1,4,	Nanette	number	22:17
	3:14	15:17 16:7	
9,11,19 22:15 23:10	necessarily	24:1 34:22	officer-
26:4,8	22:22	number-one	involved
· ·	necessary	21:5	
monthly 9:15	17:10	numbers	officer-
	need	14:8,17 23:6	perpetrated
months	10:21 28:19		23:11
22:4 38:19	neighborhood	0	officers
moral	33:15		8:17 11:4
39:6	Nicole	O'MALLEY	14:7,10,19
morgue	36:4	4:23,24	15:2 18:10
36:20	niece	objection	19:9 24:11
morning	36:3	16:3	25:3 28:13
19:7	niece's	objective	32:9
motion	36:11	39:8	offices
12:1,5,12,20	night	obligation	25:14
13:10,20	33:18	39:6	officials
40:12,18	nights	observes	3:2
motor	21:16 31:11,	39:3	offline
18:14	12	obvious	37:13
mourn	no-	21:15	Okay
36:18	trespassing	obviously	27:11 28:11
moved	33:22	25:2 38:19	37:17 38:12
13:13 40:13	Noel	occupy	39:13 40:5
multi-	27:10,11	39:19	once
apartment	28:11	October	5:18 7:10,
34:15	noise	2:5 7:12	16,24
multiple	2:22 5:20	18:23 23:9	one
25:13	14:15	OEMC	8:13,18 9:17
Municipal	nominal	10:13	14:3 15:12
15:9 17:15	39:3		21:24 22:13
murder	nominating	offenders 18:20	23:3 24:1
29:16 30:9	6:2		25:9 27:3,21
36:3,8	nominees	offering 19:24	28:9,13
mute	6:6		31:5,8,10,13
2:21 5:19	non-carceral	office	32:6 35:14
14:14	24:6	4:1,17,19	36:16,17,20
	notifications	10:11 14:4 15:13 39:18	37:6 38:8
N	21:2,9		one-year
	Novalez	officer	8:19
name	4:18	15:16,19,24	open
2:3 3:5	1.TO	16:6,24	2:10,19 6:5,
2.3.3.3			

14 13:6,11	oversight	path	38:17 39:1
30:7	5:12	24:16	planning
Opened	owned	Patrol	26:24
33:24	36:5	4:12 18:17	
		35:7	play 8:7
opens	owner		
32:10	34:19	<pre>patting 9:7</pre>	please
opinion	owner's		3:4 12:15
15:4,7 16:13 17:14	34:22	Paula	13:15 17:17
		3:6 12:11	20:19 26:15
opportunities	P	13:13 40:13	35:23 40:15
8:14 25:13		pending	pleased
opportunity	p.m.	17:8	6:3 10:4
6:22 8:14	12:22 40:23	people	point
9:1,2,11,17	pandemic	2:16 9:19	28:3
17:1 22:8,11	2:8,15	23:16,20	points
30:23_35:6	paragraphs	24:4,7 25:20	16:7
opposed	31:20	27:7,9 28:21	police
12:18 13:18	parallel	32:16,17,23	2:4 3:1,6,21
25:9	25:2	37:3	4:1,7 5:6,24
options	part	percent	6:15,16 7:8,
24:6	8:7 9:3,4,18	18:5,7 19:1,	11,24 8:5,8,
order	11:21	2 21:6,11	12,13,16,17
2:6,21 5:19	participate	permit	9:12,21
10:23 16:5	6:22	28:2,5	10:12,17,20
organization	participating	permits	11:4,5,6,18,
27:12	3:4	28:18	19 13:2
Organizing	particular	perpetrate	14:2,4,5,6,
26:17	22:13	24:8	10,18,21
origin	parties	perpetrated	15:12,14,15,
24:5	16:14,20	39:23	16,18,20
original	17:10 25:23	person	16:17 17:8,
24:4		2:11 32:7	9,12,19,24
outcome	partner 25:7	personally	19:9 20:6
23:3		9:10	21:17 26:19,
outreach	partnership	personnel	22 27:13,16
19:5	24:2 25:18,	13:3	28:1,13,20
outside	24	phones	29:11 30:15 32:10 34:4
11:12 34:16	partnerships	38:8	36:5,6,7,10
overcome	20:14	pictures	1 1 1
16:12	pass	28:12	Policing
	38:1	pitch	4:18,20
overcoming 15:5	passes	8:4	policy
	12:20 13:20	Pius	21:22
	40:18	LIUS	Pope
overnight	40.10	20.10	00 10
34:17	past	38:18	38:18
34:17 overseeing		place	portion
34:17	past	<b>place</b> 2:9 19:10	
34:17 overseeing	past	place	portion

position	12:5,8,10,	19:16	push
32:22	11,15,18,20	property	11:9
positions	13:13,15,18,	34:23	put
6:15	20 14:13	proposed	38:15
possible	15:10 17:18	15:1,23	
39:7	20:17,20	·	
	26:10 27:3,6	protect	Q
possibly	28:6,23	2:7	
39:24	29:4,6 30:22	protected	qualified
posted	33:8 35:3,	29:14	6:22 7:22
7:11 13:8	12,21 36:1	proud	quality
15:8 17:15	1	22:1 29:13	33:14 34:24
33:22 34:18,	37:8,17,22,	provide	question
22 35:16	24 38:4,11	16:10 17:17	11:14 37:5
38:21	40:8,13,15,	20:18,24	
potential	18	24:10,11	questions 9:20 10:2
18:12	press	provided	
potentially	26:15 29:1	-	30:1
23:2	35:23 38:6,8	7:12	quite
	principled	provides	28:15
practical	24:18	17:9	quote
2:11	principles	providing	39:16
practice	22:24 24:7	17:2	
38:20	priorities	prudent	R
prayer	10:8	2:12	
38:20	priority	pubic	raises
precious	11:22	12:21	30:1
40:6,7		public	
preparing	probably	2:5,19,21	randomly
25:14	27:14 37:12	5:2,17,18,20	14:2 15:11
presence	procedure	6:1,14,18	ranks
18:22	6:13	7:2,5 10:6,	19:21
present	proceed	7,11,15,16,	reach
<del>-</del>	5:16	19,20,23	9:21
22:9 37:3	proceedings	11:22 12:3,6	reached
39:10,13	40:22	13:5 16:14	37:6
presentation	process	17:22 20:15	read
38:23	6:5,23 7:17	22:7 24:2	3:5 7:1
presentations	9:3 17:10	26:11 31:19,	reading
33:15	29:12 31:9	22 32:8,11	31:20
president	proclamation	40:11	reality
2:1,4 3:6,8,	2:14		21:16 23:19
9,11,14,17,		public's	
19,21,24	professionali	2:7 29:19	receive
4:4,7,11,14,	SM 25.17 26.2 0	punishment	7:16
17,22 5:1,5,	25:17 26:3,8	29:23	received
8,9,13,15	program	Pursuant	21:1,9
6:8 8:3	24:4,5	2:9	recently
10:4,10	progress	pursuit	27:14
11:21,24	18:3,21	16:5	
	T	I	1

recognize	regard	request	RJ
5:12 7:23	23:5	14:8 15:17	39:22
22:21	regarding	requested	RJM
recognized	14:6 15:15	14:17	38:23 39:3
6:20	39:21	required	robberies
recognizing	registration	15:8	18:16
22:5	27:1	requires	Robert
recommendatio	regular	9:1	29:14 38:7
n	12:2,6,21	residential	role
7:18 15:6,23	relationship	35:14	8:6 9:10
16:2,9,12	24:17	residents	32:19
17:5 29:23	release	32:4	round
32:5	21:22	resources	19:8,24
recommendatio	released	24:11 37:15	rounds
ns	28:3	respectively	33:19
7:20 15:1	releases	39:9,21	rule
21:20 24:12	21:22	respond	8:18 14:22
recommended	relevant	33:2	16:11 32:6
14:9,18	16:22	responding	rules
15:18 29:17	remain	28:21	15:20 17:12
recording	18:15	response	ruling
17:3	remained	2:8 12:19	17:4
recordings	21:2	13:19 16:2,	rulings
16:4,22	remains	3,8 36:9	13:22 30:14
recruit	2:13	responsible	Rummel
19:22	remind	6:2,19 37:1,	39:22
recruiting	23:16	6	RV
19:17 20:2,	remote	restorative	36:5
10 26:21	12:23	24:7,16	
recruitment	remotely	retire	S
19:5	2:9,18	36:7	
recruits	report	review	safe
19:13,14,17	17:17 20:19	14:8,17	11:3,15
red	21:4 30:11	15:17 16:14,	safety
34:11	reported	22 30:7	5:3 6:1,18
reduce	22:15,20	reviewed	7:2,6 10:6,
2:22 5:19	reporter	16:1,4,10	7,11,15,16,
reduced	2:23	ridiculous	19,20,23
18:24 19:2	reporting	28:16	11:22 17:22
reducing	22:18,19	rifle	20:15 22:7
18:4	represent	33:19	sale
referring	20:23	right	33:20
16:16	representing	8:21 17:5	Sammy
reform	33:10	27:21 31:5	29:15 30:19
4:18,20	represents	33:3 35:16,	Santoyo
22:24	19:22	20 38:15	28:24 29:1,
		40:6	3,5,8

	_	I a a a a	1
Saul	served	30:2	27:10 28:24
40:3	8:4	simple	33:6 35:22
saved	service	35:17	38:5,7
18:12	6:11 25:21	single	speakers
saying	26:9	30:4	26:13
9:8 17:4,6,9	serving	sir	speaking
says	7:7 32:22	4:21 38:11	27:15
7:7	session	sit	special
schedule	13:3	34:17	17:21 23:14
38:21	sessions	sit-down	25:6
search	13:8,11	28:20	specialized
21:7	set	sitting	23:13
second	6:13 8:22	11:11,12	specific
12:14 13:14	seven	Skahill	37:11
38:17 40:14	36:7	4:20,21	specifically
Sections	several	sleep	23:15 38:12
13:5	3:2	31:12	specifics
see	sexual	Smith	28:9
9:4 23:3	24:24	14:10,19	squad
28:12 31:22	shape	15:2	23:14 25:6
seeing	23:3	society	squatters
18:24 19:21	share	23:18	34:3,6,8
31:20	8:2	Solano	staff
seizure	shift	29:15 30:3,	23:13
21:7	23:6	5,11,19	stand
select	shoe	somebody's	32:14
6:6	34:13	9:7	start
selected	shooting	sort	19:12
14:2 15:11	16:4 18:7	22:4 23:21	started
selling	21:9 29:23	24:16	2:3 30:8
34:16	shootings	sorts	statement
send	18:8,16	39:15	16:6
7:10 28:11	Shore	Sound	stay
sensitive	22:2	33:19	24:17
25:7,15	shot	sounded	steal
separate	15:21	27:19	34:9
25:10	shows	South	stemming
September	29:11	22:2 35:2	14:22
12:4,6 33:16	signed	spanned	step
36:10	26:11 40:11	21:24	7:24 16:18
sergeants	significant	speak	32:19
25:13	18:3 19:16	6:5 9:22	Steven
serious	22:16	10:7 26:12	3:9 30:12
34:20	signs	29:20 37:11	31:6,12
	33:22 34:18	40:11	32:12
serve		_	
<b>serve</b> 7:24 32:19	similar	<b>speaker</b> 5:22 26:14	<b>Stillman</b> 15:19,24

16:24 17:7,	29:11 30:15	takes	thanks
11 30:3,20	31:15,24	8:22	6:9 8:1
Stillman's	35:6,20	taking	thefts
16:6	37:10,12,18	2:9 3:3	18:14,15
	39:10,13	22:23 35:4	•
stop	Superintenden		theological
14:22	t's	talented 23:13 25:3	38:24
stopped	16:2		thing
27:24		talk	10:24 22:13
Store	<b>supposed</b> 34:21 35:16	8:22 21:13	31:8,13 32:3
33:23		talked	things
story	sure 26:12 34:12	24:21 36:16,	9:15 23:24
25:11	35:14 37:13	17,18	33:18 38:16
straight	38:1	Talley	think
24:12		4:9,10	2:2 8:9,22,
street	surprisingly 20:9	Talley's	23 9:10
18:12 33:13		25:19	22:21 23:15,
34:2,7,8	surrounded 28:1,13	teenager	21 25:22
streets	•	29:18	31:19 32:7, 8,9,12 33:2,
18:11	surrounding	television	4 35:18
stressed		31:21	thinks
10:18	survivor 24:13	tell	29:21
strongly		25:11	thorough
9:6,19,23	survivors	tend	16:13
struggled	11:13 25:8,	21:17	
31:5,7	16	term	thoroughly 16:21
stuff	suspended	40:1	
28:19	17:7	termination	thoughtful 8:24
subject	suspension	8:20	
2:13	8:19 14:11,	testify	threat
subjects	20 29:18,22	16:21 17:1	2:16
26:6	sustainably	thank	threatened
sufficient	10:23	5:8,13 6:8	35:1
16:10	sustained	8:3 9:24	three
suggestion	21:12	10:3,9	19:15,18
8:19	system	11:18,19,20,	21:8 25:10
summary	8:8,12 9:5,	22,24 14:1,	Thursday
13:7	18 11:4	16 15:10	12:22
Supe		17:18,19	time
35:4	T	20:16,17,20,	5:17 9:12
superintenden		21 26:2,9,10	23:9 26:12,
t	take	27:3,9 28:23	13 29:19
3:21,23 4:23	19:10 22:8	35:12,21	30:22 35:3
5:11 14:5,24	23:3,8 32:6	37:22 38:4	40:9,10
15:4,14,22	35:18	40:20	times
16:7,11	taken	thanking	8:7 25:10
17:6,16,18	18:10,11	27:19	Tina
21:14 23:1			4:20

today			voice
5:12 13:22	U	v	8:12
told			
36:21	ultimately	vacancies	W
Toledo	7:17,19	5:23 6:20	
15:21 29:9	unacceptable	vacant	want
30:18	33:17 34:20	22:1,6	11:18,19,20
tonight	unarmed	vast	17:21 23:4
6:10,12 8:1	39:24	39:22	25:17 27:16
21:16 36:24	understand	vehicle	29:8 36:19
tops	8:15 9:11	14:23 18:14,	wanted
34:10	31:24 32:2,	15 36:5	8:3,11 11:13
tough	18	Vice	24:20
32:3	understanding	3:6,8 12:8,	way
transcript	9:13	11 13:13	8:20,24
2:23	undertook	40:13	24:23 31:6
transparency	22:3	victim	33:4
11:8 36:11	underway	25:10	ways
trauma	22:12	victims	24:18 25:22
11:16 26:17	unelected	18:5,7,8	weapons
trauma-	30:14	23:14 25:6,8	28:22
informed	unfair	27:15	wear
25:15	32:11	video	34:11
Treasure	unique	2:20 16:4,22	website
36:4	23:21 24:3,	17:3 21:21,	6:24 7:3
Treasure's	23	22 28:11,12	13:9 15:8
36:18	universe-wide	vilification	17:15
treatment	39:22	40:3	week
30:7	universities	violated	20:5 25:12
trust	20:3	17:11	weekend
11:3,4	unmute	violating	19:10
20:13,14	5:21 29:1	15:20	weeks
try	unquote	violation	31:3 32:14
25:22	39:17	34:21	well-being
two	unvaccinated	violations	25:23
13:21 14:6	2:16	14:22 33:24	wherefore
21:21 23:24	updates	violence	39:9
25:9 30:13	20:24 26:20	18:4 20:11	Whitfield
two-minute	27:2	23:10,11,17,	14:11,19
26:13	uptick	18 24:8,24	15:2
type	22:16	27:13,18	witnessed
21:5	use-of-force	33:24 39:14, 15,16 40:1,2	22:18
typically	16:20	violent	Witzburg
21:3 33:1		18:24	4:5,6
		visibility	Wolff
		18:1	3:7,8 12:8, 11 13:13
		10.1	11 13.12
	I	I	I

40:13	Yolanda	
women	4:8	
27:13 34:2	young	
wondering	27:7,8 34:2,	
24:9 28:3,4	8	
work 9:11 11:8	<b>youth</b> 26:17,18	
19:3,6 20:22	Yvette	
22:12 23:4	6:4	
24:20 26:4	0 1	
workforce		
19:20		
working		
18:18 25:6,		
20		
works		
40:2		
world		
20:8 38:23		
worse		
33:18 written		
15:7 17:14		
wrong		
7:1 17:6		
www.chicago.		
gov.		
7:4		
x		
XII		
38:18		
Y		
year		
8:19 18:6,8, 9 19:12,14,		
18 20:1		
22:10,16,17		
years		
8:5,6 19:15,		
18 23:7		
Yhwhnewbn		
38:5,6		